MEMORANDUM

То:	Project Connect Community Advisory Committee		
From:	Cheyenne Krause, Chief of Staff, CapMetro Liane Conte, Chief of Staff, City of Austin Project Connect Office Courtney Chavez, Senior VP - Equity & Community Partnerships, Austin Transit Partnership		
Date:	September 8, 2023		
Subject:	Proposed amendments to the Project Connect Community Advisory Committee Bylaws		

The purpose of this memo is to provide an overview of proposed changes to the Project Connect Community Advisory Committee (CAC) bylaws, as recommended by staff from CapMetro, Austin Transit Partnership (ATP), and the City of Austin. Over the last year, conversations with CAC members and Joint Partnership staff identified the need to review the bylaws to address items related to the CAC's composition and operation. After the June 6, 2023 Joint Partnership action extending CAC members' terms through the end of the year, staff worked alongside the CAC to provide the recommended changes highlighted below.

Background

The CAC was jointly established by the Austin City Council (Resolution No. 20201218-004) and Capital Metro (CapMetro) Board of Directors (Resolution No. AI-2020-1402) in December 2020 to assist the ATP Board, City Council, and CapMetro Board in "engaging the community and advising on anti-displacement and equity matters related to Project Connect as well as to assist the community and the City Council in the creation and evaluation of neighborhood-level anti-displacement strategies and priorities, and the identification of key performance indicators related to equity and displacement and triggers thereof." The resolution creating the CAC is also reflected in the Joint Partnership Agreement adopted by the three Project Connect partners, and in the CAC Bylaws, also adopted by all three parties.

Since its establishment in early 2021, the ATP, CapMetro, and the City have worked closely with the CAC to advance Project Connect. Through that time, governance and structural challenges became more apparent in the operation of the CAC that required changes to the CAC bylaws and the CapMetro, ATP, City of Austin Joint Partnership Agreement. An opportunity exists now to address these clarity, structural, and transparency topics to ensure the CAC is set up for success going forward.

Process

Since the June 6 action, staff from ATP, the City, and CapMetro have been working alongside CAC members to identify challenges and potential alternative approaches to a variety of topics related to the structure and implementation of the CAC. Our primary goals emerging from this this effort are to: (1) provide continuity in CAC membership, (2) reduce barriers to membership, (3) clarify appointment and reappointment processes, (4) increase accountability and transparency in the appointment process, (5) clarify the roles of the staff liaison, and (6) evolve the bylaws and committee structure to reflect today's joint partnership approach to Project Connect.

A summary of the changes follows. A full list of changes, as well as the proposed bylaws, are attached.

- Clarified membership composition to include 11 members appointed by the ATP Board, the City Council and CapMetro Board.
 - Previously, the CAC was made up of 11 members, but could increase to up to 15 members as determined by the Nominating Committee. Proposed amendment clarifies the number of members is 11, which minimizes confusion and solidifies the number of voting members of the CAC.
- Appointment and Reappointment Processes
 - Modified the Nominating Committee membership to add the Community Expert Director for Community Planning who sits on the ATP Board, and one member of the CAC to be identified by the CAC Chair. The other two positions on the Nominating Committee would be Chair of the City's Mobility Committee and the Chair of the CapMetro Operations, Planning and Safety Committee. This allows for ATP and the CAC to be represented in the Nominating Committee process. The proposed amendments also include the ability for members of the Nominating Committee to delegate the responsibility to another member of their respective body if they are not able to participate in a specific process.
 - Removed Committee & Commission appointed positions; all 11 positions would be nominated by the Nominating Committee through an application process and approved by the City Council, CapMetro Board, and ATP Board.
- Vacancy filling processes
 - Proposed amendment identifies a process to fill mid-term vacancies. The CAC would review the most recent pool of applicants to make a recommendation for a person to fill the vacated seat for the remainder of the term. The Council, CapMetro Board, and ATP Board would consider the recommendation for approval. This allows for vacancies to be filled without convening the Nominating Committee at mid-term points throughout the terms. The individual filling the vacancy would have the opportunity to reapply at the end of the term.
- Removal of members
 - Proposed amendments clarify grounds for removal including three unexcused consecutive absences, violation of the ATP Ethics, Conflicts and Nondisclosure Policy, and failure to continue to meet membership eligibility requirements.

- Term of Membership (Staggering, term length, and term limits)
 - The current CAC membership terms expire at the same time, which does not provide for continuity of membership, knowledge, or committee leadership. The proposed amendment to the bylaws allows for staggered terms of the members. In 2023, CAC Members would draw straws for initial 2-year and 4-year terms.
 - Term length is increased to four years with a maximum of two terms or 8 years, except in those instances of 2-year initial terms or filling of vacancies.
- Created new section to contain all responsibilities of staff liaison
 - Previously, staff liaison responsibilities were either not documented or were scattered throughout the bylaws. These responsibilities have been detailed and consolidated in Section 5.1.
- Removed option to form subcommittees
 - Subcommittees as described in the bylaws are not being utilized by the CAC.
 CAC had and continues to have the ability to form working groups on various topics. See Section 7.
- Corrected typos and miscellaneous errata.

Next Steps

Staff will present this recommendation as items to adopt the CAC bylaws and amend the Joint Partnership Agreement during the CAC Meeting on September 14, the ATP Board meeting on September 20, City Council meeting on September 21, and CapMetro Board meeting on September 25. Upon approval of the amended bylaws, staff will initiate a process to appoint and reappoint CAC Members to be completed by the end of 2023.

We are extremely appreciative of the work of this volunteer advisory committee, and the salient guidance you have provided us on behalf of the community. We are eager to work quickly and ensure continued success and longevity of the CAC.

If you have questions, please don't hesitate to reach out to staff.

Cc:

CapMetro Board of Directors Austin City Council Austin Transit Partnership Board of Directors Dottie Watkins, President & CEO, CapMetro Robert Goode, Interim Assistant City Manager, City of Austin Greg Cannally, Executive Director, Austin Transit Partnership

Attachments

- 1. Project Connect Community Advisory Committee Bylaws (As Proposed September 2023)
- 2. Project Connect CAC Bylaws Edit Log (As Proposed September 2023)

Project Connect Community Advisory Committee Bylaws *As proposed – September 2023*

SECTION 1. NAME.

The name of the Advisory Committee is Project Connect Community Advisory Committee.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE AND DUTIES.

The purpose of the Project Connect Community Advisory Committee, referred to hereinafter as CAC, is to assist the Austin City Council (City Council), Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (CapMetro) Board, and Austin Transit Partnership (ATP) Board in engaging the community and advising on antidisplacement and equity matters related to Project Connect, in its entirety, as well as to assist the community and the City Council in the creation and evaluation of neighborhood-level anti-displacement strategies and priorities and the identification of Key Performance Indicators related to equity and displacement.

The recommendations made by the CAC related to displacement mitigation measures or equity issues that impact historically underserved populations must be considered at a public meeting of the ATP Board, City Council, or the CapMetro Board, as appropriate, in accordance with the recommendations made.

As provided in the City Contract with the Voters (Res. No. 20200812-015), the City shall "create with the community, neighborhood-level prevention and mitigation strategies" and shall make "recommendations for funding proposals and implementation of identified strategies." Further, ATP shall provide funding and "enter into interlocal agreements and/or grant agreements with the City to timely develop and implement anti-displacement strategies." The CAC will provide support in the creation and implementation of these strategies.

As provided in the Joint Powers Agreement, the CAC shall also review Project Connect business impact mitigation strategies and public involvement plans prior to their approval.

SECTION 3. MEMBERSHIP.

3.1 Membership Composition

The CAC is composed of eleven members. Members are appointed by approval of the CapMetro Board, ATP Board, and Austin City Council, utilizing a Nominating Committee process outlined in Section 3.5. Members should have lived experience and/or expertise that contributes to the purpose of the CAC.

Additionally, the CAC may have up to two non-voting ex-officio members. If CAC determines ex-officio(s) are necessary, the ex-officio(s) will be appointed by the sitting members of the CAC.

3.2 Eligibility

All CAC Members must meet the following requirements:

- a) Be residents of either the City of Austin or CapMetro's Service Area;
- b) Not be a person who is registered or required to register as a lobbyist under City Code Chapter 4-8 or who is employed by a person registered or required to register under City Code Chapter 4-8.
- c) Not be an employee of the City of Austin, CapMetro, or ATP;

- d) Not have a contract for real property, goods, or services with the City of Austin, CapMetro or ATP, or be employed by such a contractor; and,
- e) Shall abide by the ATP Ethics, Conflicts and Nondisclosure Policy, as amended.

CAC Members must continue to meet eligibility requirements throughout the duration of their term. It is each CAC Member's responsibility to notify the primary staff liaison at ATP (Staff Liaison) of any changes in their eligibility. The Staff Liaison role is defined below in section 5.1.

3.3 Term of Membership

CAC Members serve for a term of four years and remain appointed members after their four-year term has expired until the earlier of: 1) their replacement is appointed; 2) the CAC Member indicates in writing to the Chair that they do not want to remain appointed; 3) the CAC Member is reappointed to a new term; 4) 180 days have passed; or 5) the CAC Member becomes ineligible. CAC Members are limited to two terms or eight total years following initial adoption of these amended bylaws on the CAC unless they receive a two-year term under Section 3.4 or are completing a vacated term under Section 3.7, in which case they shall be limited to three terms.

3.4 Staggered Terms

Upon initial adoption of these amended bylaws, in January 2024 all CAC Members shall draw for two-year and four-year initial terms. Subsequent terms of these members shall be four years.

3.5 Appointment Process

A nominating committee shall be formed to review applications and make recommendations regarding appointments of CAC members.

The Nominating Committee shall include the Chair of the City's Mobility Committee, the Chair of the CapMetro Operations, Planning and Safety Committee, the Community Expert Director for Community Planning who sits on the ATP Board, and one member of the CAC to be identified by the Chair. If unable to participate in the Nominating Committee, the roles outlined above may identify a designee from their respective body to serve as their delegate for the entirety of the Nominating Committee process.

ATP, the City, and CapMetro shall make available online all opportunities for members of the public to become CAC Members, and shall promote and make widely accessible any application to join the CAC.

The application must include the following: the applicant's name, ZIP code, and questions that address how frequently an applicant uses transit to commute and applicant demographics such as age, gender, race, housing status and income. The application must also include question(s) that allow the applicant to speak to how their personal, professional, or lived experience has contributed to meeting the needs of people experiencing homelessness, mobility justice, the advancement of criminal justice reform, housing and land-use policy, workforce/labor policy, and increasing economic and other opportunities for underserved transit users. Staff shall ensure applicants are aware their application may be subject to public information requests.

The Staff Liaison shall provide received applications to the Nominating Committee and, in coordination with each agency's staff, shall support the Nominating Committee's review of the applications.

If CAC determines ex-officio(s) are necessary, the ex-officio(s) will be appointed by the sitting members of the CAC.

3.6 Reappointments

A CAC Member is eligible for reappointment at the end of their first term. If a CAC Member is seeking reappointment, they must complete the CAC Member Reappointment Form at least sixty (60) days before the expiration of their term and turn it into the Staff Liaison. The application will be reviewed by the Staff Liaison for completeness, and submitted to the Nominating Committee for consideration. The Nominating Committee shall review the application and make a recommendation to the ATP Board, Austin City Council, and CapMetro Board regarding reappointment.

3.7 Filling of Vacancies

In the event of a mid-term vacancy, the CAC Chair will designate a working group to review applications from the most recent application and appointment process and make a recommendation to the full CAC. At a CAC meeting, the CAC will vote to approve the recommendation of a person to serve out the remainder of the outgoing member's term. The CAC's recommendation will be considered for approval by the City Council, the CapMetro Board and ATP Board. At the end of the term, the individual will have an opportunity to reapply through the appointment process outlined in Section 3.5 to serve on the CAC for up to two full terms.

To fill a vacancy that occurs at the completion of a full term, the application process as outlined in Section 3.5 shall be followed.

3.8 Removal of Members

All CAC Members play an important role in Project Connect. It is important that by accepting a role on the CAC, each individual actively participates and contributes to the CAC. The following constitute grounds for removal:

- a) Being absent from three consecutive CAC meetings or missing a quarter of CAC meetings annually without explanation acceptable to the CAC Chair. The primary Staff Liaison shall contact the absent Committee Member to ascertain reasons for the absence and provide that information to the CAC Chair to determine whether removal is necessary. If the CAC Chair determines attendance standards have been violated, then the Staff Liaison will inform the Committee Member.
- b) Failure to abide by the ATP Ethics, Conflicts and Nondisclosure Policy, as amended. A person may report a concern regarding adherence to the ATP Ethics, Conflicts and Nondisclosure policy to the Chair or Staff Liaison for review. If determined that a violation has occurred, the Staff Liaison shall inform the Committee Member that they are removed from the CAC.
- c) Failure of a CAC Member to maintain their eligibility as defined in Section 3.2 above throughout the duration of their term constitutes grounds for removal.

Upon removal of a CAC Member, staff shall initiate the appropriate appointment process as outlined above.

3.9 Resignation

A CAC member who seeks to resign from the CAC shall submit a written resignation to the CAC Chair and the primary Staff Liaison. If possible, the resignation should allow for a 60-day notice so a replacement may be identified.

Upon notification of a resignation, staff shall initiate the appropriate appointment process as outlined above.

3.10 Official Actions

An individual CAC member may not act in an official capacity except through the action of the CAC.

SECTION 4. OFFICERS

The officers of the CAC shall consist of a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary.

4.1 Duties of Officers

The Chair shall preside at CAC meetings and represent CAC at ceremonial functions.

The Chair and Vice Chair will appoint all committees and approve each final meeting agenda.

In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform all duties of the Chair. In the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair, the Secretary shall perform all duties of the Chair.

The Secretary shall ensure that the integrity of the minutes are kept. The Secretary shall monitor the timely completion of CAC meeting summaries.

The Secretary shall take note of CAC Members' meeting attendance and shall provide this information to the Chair.

4.2 Election of Officers

Officers shall be elected annually during the first meeting of the calendar year by a majority vote of CAC. In the event a current officer becomes ineligible to serve as an officer, CAC may hold an emergency election as needed.

The term of office shall be one year. An officer may continue to serve until a successor is elected. A person may not serve as an officer in a designated position of CAC for more than four consecutive one-year terms. A person who has served as an officer in a designated position of CAC for four consecutive terms is not eligible for re-election to that designated office until the expiration of two years after the last date of the person's service in that office. CAC, at its discretion, may override the term limit provision for an officer by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the authorized CAC Members.

A CAC Member may not hold more than one office at a time.

SECTION 5. STAFF LIAISON

5.1 General

The primary Staff Liaison for the CAC shall be staff member from ATP. The primary Staff Liaison shall be supported by staff from the City's Project Connect Office, the City's Housing Department, and CapMetro

as necessary to ensure efficiency and effectiveness of the CAC in their purpose, and based on the CAC's monthly agenda. This includes coordination of appointment, reappointment, and removal of members as needed.

The Staff Liaison shall support the CAC and CapMetro, ATP, and the City in processes to maintain the CAC's membership, including appointments, filling of vacancies, etc.

The Staff Liaison shall coordinate logistics and support for each CAC meeting, including necessary accessibility and childcare accommodations, language access accommodations, coordination of physical meeting space and technology needs, etc.

5.2 Maintaining of Records

The Staff Liaison shall submit the meeting agenda through the online agenda posting system for each meeting not less than 72 hours before the meeting.

The Staff Liaison shall prepare the minutes from each meeting. The minutes of each CAC meeting must include the vote of each CAC Member on each action item before CAC and indicate whether a CAC Member is absent or failed to vote on an item.

The Staff Liaison shall participate and coordinate in developing the CAC monthly agenda, alongside the CAC officers. The Liaison shall coordinate partner-agency agenda items with the appropriate parties.

CAC records are subject to disclosure under Texas Government Code Chapter 552 (Texas Public Information Act).

SECTION 6. MEETINGS

6.1 General

CAC meetings and posting of agendas shall comply with Texas Government Code Chapter 551 (Texas Open Meetings Act).

CAC meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, or some other parliamentary procedure adopted by the CAC.

CAC shall allow members of the community to provide public comment during a period of time set aside for public comment. The Chair may limit a speaker to three minutes.

Each person and CAC member attending a meeting should observe decorum pursuant to Section 2-1-48 of the City Code.

The Chair shall adjourn a CAC meeting not later than 10 p.m. unless CAC votes to continue the meeting.

CAC meetings shall be recorded and held in locations publicly accessible via in-person and/or virtual participation, as determined by the CAC.

6.2 Quorum

A majority of CAC Members constitutes a quorum.

If a quorum for a meeting does not convene within one-half hour of the posted time for the meeting, then the meeting may not be held.

6.3 Meeting Schedule

CAC shall meet monthly or when it is required to meet in order to comply with a legal deadline or critical project or program milestone. In November of each year, CAC shall adopt a schedule of the meetings for the upcoming year, including makeup meeting dates for the holidays and canceled meetings.

The Chair may call a special meeting, and the Chair shall call a special meeting if requested by three or more members. The call shall state the purpose of the meeting. CAC may not call a meeting in addition to its regularly scheduled meetings as identified in its adopted meeting schedule, more often than once a quarter, unless the meeting is required to comply with a statutory deadline, or a deadline established by City Council, CapMetro, or ATP.

The meeting schedule shall be posted online.

6.4 Agendas

Two or more CAC Members may place an item on the agenda by oral request at a meeting of the CAC or written request to the officers and Staff Liaison at least five days before the meeting. After first consulting with and receiving input from the Staff Liaison and appropriate agencies, the officer shall approve each final meeting agenda.

Agendas shall be posted online and physically posted in a public space at the ATP offices.

6.5 Actions of the CAC

To be effective, CAC action must be adopted by an affirmative vote of the number of CAC Members necessary to provide a quorum.

The CAC Chair has the same voting privilege as any other CAC Member. Ex-officio member(s) do not have voting privileges.

6.6 CAC Participation at Non-Meeting Events

Individual CAC Members may come together at non-meeting events such as public meetings, workshops, private events, etc. This gathering does not contribute towards a quorum so long as CAC business will not be discussed. Staff shall post instances of non-meeting events organized by staff where a quorum is likely to be present.

SECTION 7. WORKING GROUPS

7.1 Working Groups

A working group may be established at the discretion of the Chair. CAC Chair shall appoint CAC Members to the working group, with the members' consent.

CAC can determine the size of a working group but the number of CAC Members serving on the working group cannot equal or exceed a quorum of CAC.

A working group may designate a Chair, with the member's consent, but it is not required to do so.

Quorum requirements do not apply to working groups.

Staff support may be provided for working groups.

Working groups are not required to post their meetings in accordance with the Texas Government Code Chapter 551 (Texas Open Meetings Act).

SECTION 8. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY.

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, or some other parliamentary rules adopted by CAC, shall govern CAC in all cases to which they are applicable, except when inconsistent with these bylaws or with special rules of procedure which CAC.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS.

The CAC may initiate an amendment of these bylaws at any properly called meeting by CAC, with the approval by a super majority (two-thirds) of CAC members. Bylaws amendments are not effective unless approved by the City Council, ATP Board, and CapMetro Board. The staff liaison shall facilitate approval of bylaws amendments at all three governing bodies, and shall inform the CAC of when the bylaws have been fully adopted.

The CapMetro Board, City Council and ATP Board may initiate amendments to the CAC Bylaws, which shall require the adoption of the amended bylaws by the CAC upon approval of all three governing bodies. Prior to any vote on Bylaws changes initiated by the governing bodies, the primary Staff Liaison shall inform the CAC of proposed changes and provide CAC an opportunity to provide feedback on the draft; any feedback the CAC offers shall be provided to the governing bodies.

Project Connect Community Advisory Committee Bylaws Edit Log As proposed – September 2023

The list below is a comprehensive list of proposed changes to the Project Connect Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Bylaws by section. The intent of this document is to capture minor and significant changes made, including reorganization of existing content. This list is in lieu of a red line document of the existing bylaws.

- General
 - Changed all instances of "Capital Metro" to CapMetro, except for the first instance.
 - Changed "Articles" to "Sections" and created relevant subsections. For example, "Article
 Membership." is now "Section 3. Membership", with relevant subsections enumerated as "3.# Subsection Name".
 - Minor typo and stylistic changes. For example, changing certain instances of "member" to "Member" and "CAC Member".
- Section 1: Name
 - changed "board" to "advisory committee"
- Section 2: Purpose and Duties
 - Removed reference to "social" equity, as CAC advises on Project Connect equity broadly.
 - Removed reference to the Project Connect equity tool to restore purpose language to original CAC documents.
- Section 3: Membership
 - Reorganized material into subsections: Membership Composition, Eligibility, Term of Membership, Official Actions, Resignation
 - Created new sections: Reappointment, Filling of Vacancies, and Removal of Members, Staggered Terms
 - Section 3.1 Membership Composition
 - Defines CAC as being comprised of 11 members appointed by the CapMetro Board, ATP Board and Austin City Council
 - Removes appointment of any members from CapMetro Committees or City Council Commissions
 - Clarifies that the CAC may have up to two ex-officio members, and, should the CAC decide ex-officio(s) are needed, allows the CAC to determine who it will be.
 - Section 3.2 Eligibility
 - Clarified that eligibility criteria applies to members, not applicants.
 - Clarified that CAC Members must continue to meet eligibility criteria for the duration of their term and that each member owns the responsibility of reporting changes in their eligibility.

- Moved other elements of eligibility (abiding by the ATP Ethics, Conflicts, and Nondisclosure Policy) to this section.
- Section 3.3 Term of Membership
 - Removed reference to "July 1st on year of appointment". Terms begin upon appointment.
 - Increased the term of Members from two years to four years.
 - Established a two term limit for Members unless they are completing a vacated term or draw an initial two-year term.
- Section 3.4 Staggered Terms
 - Created a new section to create staggered terms for Members.
- Section 3.5 Appointment Process
 - Identifies process for appointing Members that utilizes a nominating committee to make a recommendation for consideration by all three governing bodies.
 - Noted that staff shall inform applicants their application may be subject to Public Information Requests.
 - Clarified that ex-officios are appointed at the discretion of the CAC.
- Section 3.6 Reappointments
 - Establishes the ability of existing members to be reappointed and specifies that an application will be completed, submitted to the nominating committee, and approved upon nominating committee recommendation by all three governing bodies.
- Section 3.7 Filling of Vacancies
 - Creates a process to fill mid-term vacancies that includes a CAC working group to review and recommend appointment to be considered by the full CAC.
 - Specifies the term length for individuals completing a term.
- Section 3.8 Removal of Members
 - Clarifies that failure to attend three consecutive meetings without explanation acceptable to the CAC Chair constitutes grounds for removal.
 - Clarified it is the responsibility of the Chair to determine if there is a violation of the attendance policy in the bylaws and the staff liaison would inform the member.
 - Clarifies that a change in eligibility constitutes grounds for removal.

- Clarifies that failure to abide by the ATP Ethics, Conflicts and Nondisclosure Policy constitutes grounds for removal and provides instruction on who can and how to report potential violations.
- Section 3.9 Resignation
 - Clarified that the resigning member shall notify the CAC chair and staff liaison, not the City clerk.
- Moved topics on absences and reimbursement to Subsection 3.8 Removal of Members and 5.2 - Maintaining of Records, and 6.1 - General
- Section 4: Officers
 - Consolidated Articles 4. Officer and 5. Duties of Officers into one section
 - Section 4.1 Duties of Officers
 - Clarified that it is the responsibility of the Secretary to track absences and report them to the chair.
 - Section 4.2 Election of Officers
 - Removed the specific term start and stop dates.
 - Increased the number of consecutive terms in an officer role, to coincide with the increased term lengths for members.
- Section 5: Staff Liaison
 - Created a new section to outline and clarify the roles and responsibilities of the staff liaison
 - o 5.1 General
 - Specified that the staff liaison is ATP, with support from the City and CapMetro.
 - Specified that the City shall provide support from both the Project Connect Office and the Housing Department.
 - Specified that the staff liaison will support membership maintenance activities (i.e., reappointment, filling of vacancies, etc.)
 - Specified that the staff liaison shall coordinate all meeting logistics
 - 5.2 Maintaining of Records
 - Consolidated various points about minutes, agendas, etc., into one subsection.
- Section 6: Meetings
 - Organized content into subsections, and combined previous Meetings and Agendas sections.
 - o 6.1 General
 - Clarified that CAC shall take public comment as part of each meeting, and removed a prohibition on taking comment on an item posted as a briefing.

- Clarified that posting of agendas must also comply with Texas Government Code Chapter 551 (Texas Open Meetings Act).
- Removed reference to closed meetings. This removal does not prohibit closed meetings.
- o 6.2 Meeting Quorum
 - No change.
- 6.3 Meeting Schedule
 - Added a provision to allow a special called meeting in order to comply with a critical project or program milestone.
 - Added a description of where the meeting schedule shall be posted.
- 6.4 Agendas
 - Clarified that the agenda development will include consultation with "appropriate agencies" as is current process.
 - Moved mention of posting requirements for agendas to "staff liaison" section under consolidated responsibilities.
 - Added a description of where the agendas shall be posted.
- 6.5 Actions of the CAC
 - Clarified that an action must be adopted by a majority of the CAC members.
- o 6.6 CAC Participation at Non-Meeting Events
 - Clarifies that CAC members may congregate together at non-meeting events where CAC business will not be discussed without constituting a quorum.
- Section 7: Working Groups
 - Removed option to form subcommittees.
- Section 8: Parliamentary Authority
 - No change
- Section 9: Amendment of Bylaws
 - Clarified that the staff liaison shall support the approval of bylaws changes at the three governing bodies.
 - Added language that the bylaws changes could be initiated by approval of the CapMetro Board, City Council and ATP Board.

PROCESS & TIMELINE

JULY – Joint Partnership staff discussions around bylaws modifications, process changes, and governance documents

AUGUST – Sharing recommendations with CAC, CAC Governance Working Group, and gathering feedback

SEPTEMBER – Final recommendations shared with CAC and on tri-party agendas for approval

Sept. 14 - CAC

Sept. 20 - ATP Board

Sept. 21 - City Council

Sept. 25 - CapMetro Board

OCTOBER – Public outreach seeking applicants for CAC positions

NOVEMBER & DECEMBER – Applicant review and selection process



INITIAL PROPOSED CHANGES

- General clean up
- Terms
 - Increasing term to four years
 - Creating a staggering of terms and two-term limit
- Eligibility
 - Clarified that members must remain eligible throughout their term
- Clarifies process
 - Reappointment, resignation, filling of vacancies and removal of members
- Created a new Staff Liaison section



FURTHER REFINEMNET (AUGUST – SEPTEMBER)

Membership (Section 3)

- Composition the CAC will include 11 members appointed by the CapMetro Board, ATP Board, and City Council
- CAC may have up to two Ex-Officio and shall determine who the Ex-Officio(s) are

Appointment Process (Section 3.5)

- The CAC members shall be recommended by a nominating committee
- Nominating Committee includes: (1) Chair of the City's Mobility Committee, (2) Chair of the CapMetro Operations, Planning and Safety Committee, (3) Community Expert Director for Community Planning who sits on the ATP Board, and (4) one member of the CAC to be identified by the Chair
- The Nominating Committee may have a delegate



FURTHER REFINEMNET (AUGUST – SEPTEMBER)

Membership (Section 3) - *continued*

• Filling of mid-term vacancies – CAC Chair to create working group for recommendations

Meetings (Section 6)

- General removed prohibition on closed meetings (TOMA supersedes)
- Meeting Quorum clarified that a majority constitutes a quorum



FURTHER REFINEMNET (AUGUST – SEPTEMBER)

SECTION 9. Amendment of Bylaws

- Clarified that either the CAC or governing bodies may initiate bylaws amendments, but that bylaws are only effective once approved by all three governing bodies
- Noted that the staff liaison is responsible for supporting this process



Equitable Transit-Oriented Development

Light Rail Transit Station Area Population Targets Community Advisory Committee – 09/14/2023

A METRO

Agenda

- 1 Quick Refresh
- 2 FTA Scoring Overview & Purpose of Pop. Targets
- 3 Methodology
- 4 Results
- 5 Next Steps & Q&A





Quick Refresh – What's been happening for ETOD since March 2023?



Council accepts the ETOD Policy Plan

On March 9, 2023 Council accepted the ETOD Policy Plan as a resolution with amendments and directed city staff to:

- Incorporate ETOD policy tools for 11 station areas in the upcoming Northeast Austin District planning process,
- Initiate amendments to the *Imagine Austin* Comprehensive Plan to adopt elements of the ETOD Policy Plan,
- Initiate amendments to City Code Title 25 Land Development Code, including developing an ETOD Overlay and;
- Develop an ETOD Implementation Plan





ETOD Implementation Plan

Staff will develop an **ETOD Implementation Plan** that will include:

- Background and Overview of ETOD and Implementation Approach
- Evaluating the Success of ETOD in Austin
 - Performance Measures to Assess ETOD Station Area Success
 - Phase 1 Light Rail Population Targets
- Short-term Work Program for ETOD
 - Timeline
 - Staffing Strategy and Structure
 - ETOD Overlay
 - Station Area Vision Planning
 - Policy Toolkit Highlights
- Partnerships and Innovative Financing for Implementation

*<u>Update memo</u> provided on July 6, 2023;

full ETOD Implementation Plan anticipated in October 2023*





City Council direction to set LRT population targets

"Coordinate with the Austin Transit Partnership, Capital Metro, the City of Austin's Project Connect Office, and the Project Connect Community Advisory Committee to <u>develop population targets for</u> <u>areas around the light rail stations, both individually and as an</u> <u>average along the light rail corridor, with the goal of maximizing</u> <u>the project's score on grant applications</u> in order to maximize federal grant funding competitiveness."





How does the FTA think about population density? How do targets support our City policy goals?



FTA Overall New Starts Scoring Criteria



FTA Land Use Scoring Criteria



- Quantitative
- Measures existing conditions what's "on the ground" today?

Breakpoints

The breakpoints for station area population, employment density, and Central Business District parking are:

	Station Area Development		Parking Supply	
Rating	Employment served by system ²	Avg. Population density (persons/square mile) ³	CBD typical cost per day ⁴	CBD spaces per employee ⁵
High	> 220,000	> 15,000	>\$16	< 0.2
Medium-High	140,000-219,999	9,600 - 15,000	\$12 - \$16	0.2 - 0.3
Medium	70,000-139,999	5,760 - 9,599	\$8 - \$12	0.3 - 0.4
Medium-Low	40,000-69,999	2,561 - 5,759	\$4 - \$8	0.4 - 0.5
Low	<40,000	< 2,560	< \$4	> 0.5





FTA <u>Economic Development</u> Scoring Criteria

- Qualitative
- Measures impacts on future conditions what's Austin doing now to support transit in the future?
- FTA evaluates transit supportive plans and policies, the demonstrated performance of those plans and policies, and the policies and tools in place to preserve or increase the amount of affordable housing in the project corridor.





16.6%

How This Can Support Other City Goals





Methodology to develop LRT population targets



Overview of Process – Setting LRT Population Targets

- Develop "baseline" station area and corridor population *how many people live near the light rail project today?*
- 2. Forecast future station area and corridor population *how many people will live near light rail in the future based on current patterns?*
- 3. Discuss projections with CAC working group and triparty staff what factors should we consider from a policy perspective when setting targets based on these projections?
- 4. Take feedback and adjust population estimates based on policy considerations *how do the ETOD Typologies factor into our targets?*
- 5. Develop recommended targets per Council direction and share for feedback with full CAC





1. Developing a baseline – How many people live in the corridor today? 2022 Baseline

- Using block-level Census data
 - 2022 counts of housing units
 - 2020 vacancy rates and average household sizes applied
 - 2020 group quarter populations added



	Station Area	2022 Baseline Population Estimate		
	Yellow Jacket	4,706		
	Montopolis	7,505	Government	4,350
	Faro	8,522	Center	
	Pleasant Valley	15,426	(15th Street) UT West	25,760
	Lakeshore	8,244	Mall	40 - 0-
	Travis Heights	6,805	29th Street 38th Street	19,597 6,157
	Waterfront	7,102	South Congress	5,772
	Cesar Chavez	8,783	-	F (77
	Congress Ave	10,458	Oltorf	5,677
	14		METRO	PARTNERSHI

2. Forecasting future populations – How many people will live near the corridor in the *future*?

- Establish a growth rate to then apply to the baseline
- Assumes population will change (increase or decrease) at the same rate in the future as it did in the past
- Growth rates established for the following three periods:
 - 2010-2020 2010-2022 2020-2022
- Growth rate also produced for blocks with unstable data, population decline, missing a trend line, or showing unrealistically high growth





3. What we heard from the CAC Working Group

- Ensure this exercise supports more than just FTA goals keep the broader mission in mind
 - Climate equity, better connectivity, creating equitable opportunities centrally
- Incorporate this analysis into future work also
 - ETOD Overlay, station area plans, ETOD Policy Tools, etc.
- Approach setting population targets with sensitivity to displacement risk
 - Pair growth with appropriate programming to mitigate displacement pressure
- Possibility of incorporating jobs into this analysis
 - Not feasible with the timeline of this Council-directed effort, but something to consider in the future since some station areas will be more job-focused





4. Applying the ETOD Typologies

Rail



If a station has	and is	and has experienced
More Residents Today	Historically Exclusionary or Low Displacement	Rapid Change
More Residents Today	Historically Exclusionary or Low Displacement	Slow Change
Fewer Residents Today	Historically Exclusionary or Low Displacement	Rapid Change
Fewer Residents Today	Historically Exclusionary or Low Displacement	Slow Change
More Residents Today	Vulnerable to or Experiencing Displacement	Rapid Change
More Residents Today	Vulnerable to or Experiencing Displacement	Slow Change
Fewer Residents Today	Vulnerable to or Experiencing Displacement	Rapid Change
Fewer Residents Today	Vulnerable to or Experiencing Displacement	Slow Change
Applying the ETOD Typologies

Indicator	Characteristic	Multiplying Factor
Population Density	More Dense	0.75
(weighted at 25%)	Less Dense	1.25
Weigh Displacement Risk (weighted at 50%) feed	ted more More Vulnerable	0.75
	g group back Less Vulnerable	1.25
Rate of Change (weighted at 25%)	Rapid Change	0.75
	Slow Change	1.25





Results



Draft Phase 1 LRT Population Targets

Station Area	2022 Baseline Population Estimate	2045 Population Target	% Change
Yellow Jacket	4,706	10,000-15,000	213-319%
Montopolis	7,505	15,000-20,000	200-266%
Faro	8,522	10,000-15,000	117-176%
Pleasant Valley	15,426	25,000-30,000	162-194%
Lakeshore	8,244	20,000-25,000	243-303%
Travis Heights	6,805	15,000-20,000	220-294%
Waterfront	7,102	20,000-25,000	211-282%
Cesar Chavez	8,783	25,000-30,000	285-342%
Congress Ave	10,458	25,000-30,000	239-287%
Government Center (15th Street)	4,350	10,000-15,000	230-345%
UT West Mall	25,760	50,000-55,000	194-214%
29 th Street	19,597	30,000-35,000	153-179%
38 th Street	6,157	10,000-15,000	162-244%
South Congress	5,772	15,000-20,000	260-346%
Oltorf	5,677	10,000-15,000	176-264%
Corridor Total Population within ¹ / ₂ radius of station areas	87,604	190,000-195,000	217-223%

Next Steps + Q & A



What will happen after setting population targets for LRT? How will the targets be used?

- Staff will include recommended LRT population targets as part of the ETOD Implementation Plan
- LRT population targets will inform future projects:
 - Development of the ETOD Overlay regulations
 - Development of future ETOD station area plans for LRT stations
 - Implementation of ETOD Policy Tools, such as the "Establishing High Affordable Housing Goals for Publicly Owned Land in ETOD Areas" tool





Questions? Warner.Cook@AustinTexas.gov

CopMetro

00

00

Ħ

2b/2ba

d

CapMetro

AUSTIN RECREATION CENTER

-Pb

B

URN

ATR

CapMetro Light Rail Bar

BARBERSHOP

AUST N TRANSIT PARTNERSHIP

Ę

HUG Team: Human-centered Design

Community Advisory September 14, 2023



WHERE WE WANT TO GO

Create a transit environment that prioritizes **ease** of use, personal **choice**, and community **belonging**: a **human-centered** design that connects all people to what they need and love about Austin.



HOW WE GET THERE

How do we create a human-centered design?





WORK TO DATE

Local Context Research





WORK TO DATE

User Experience Research



Mapping User Mobility Patterns





Cognitive Mapping of the Transit Experience

Vision Workshops + Engagements-on-the-Go



USER RESEARCH

Mapping User Mobility Patterns



AUS

PARTNERSHIP

USER RESEARCH

Cognitive Mapping **Of the Transit Experience**





GPS location







post interview





USER RESEARCH

Workshops and On-the-Go Engagements



Walkshops

Blind & Visually Impaired

June 21, led by Scott Meyer, Texas Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services

Safe Routes	to
School	

June 23, led by Coleen Gentles, Safe Routes to School

Deaf & Hard of Hearing

June 22, led by Stacy Landry, Travis County Services for Deaf and Hard of Hearing

CapMetro Art Program & Artist

Focus Groups

June 22 led by Melissa Ortiz and J Muzazc (McKalla Station Artist) **Reps from** The City of Austin, Austin Downtown Alliance, CapMetro, ATP EAC, ATP PSEC, ATP Board, CAC, SWSG

Vision Workshops





USER NEEDS

IN PROCESS





ATP FALL ENGAGEMENT

How do we ensure these user needs and our design principles resonate with Austinites?



EXPERIENCE-BASED ENGAGEMENT

Leveraging community partnerships to expand reach to more communities and connect with people in more creative and engaging ways



DIGITAL TOOLS

Engaging people in new ways to increase reach and inspire new riders



WORKSHOPS

Facilitated conversations with interactive exercises to discuss topics that will inform design





THANK YOU.



Proposed January 2024 Service Change

September 14 2023

Today's Presentation

- Proposed January Service Changes
 - Step 1: Identify Challenges and Opportunities
 - Step 2: Develop Proposals and Evaluate Proposals

CapMetro

- Step 3: Engage Community and Board Approval
- Looking Forward
 - Pickup Performance

Proposed January 2024 Service Change





Pre-Pandemic

CapMetro is operating service in accordance with the Boardapproved and longrange service plan (CapRemap) and seeing historic ridership increases.

March 2020

Pandemic declared.

CapMetro temporarily suspends Express Routes 981 & 987 and implements modified schedule for all services.

These changes remain in place through August 2020, when some service schedules are restored.

September 2021

Significant impacts to available resources (operators and mechanics) require service change and reductions to provide reliable, predictable service.

CapMetro temporarily suspends E-Bus Routes 410, 411 and 412 and reduces daily service frequencies on Local Routes 18, 217 and 335.

Today

CapMetro leveraging resources from ongoing suspended services to provide support for areas of need, such as high-ridership routes (300) and UT Shuttle.



How is a service change proposal developed?





Step 1: Identifying Challenges & Opportunities

- Availability of Resources
 - Covid suspended resources have been reallocated to in-need routes with high ridership.
 - 53% of Go-Line calls within the last six months are about service reliability, demonstrating the need to continue to allocate resources in a way that prioritizes predictability and reliability for customers.

Travel Patterns

- Post-pandemic travel patterns are still unstable and more challenging to predict, impacting ridership.
- Industry-wide, commuter service has not recovered as fast as local service.

CapMetro

Step 1: Identifying Challenges & Opportunities

- Transparency for Customers
 - CapMetro has continued indefinite suspension of some services as ongoing pandemic response.
 - Customers have requested transparency in whether these services will ever be restored.





Ridership is Recovering



Step 1: Identifying Challenges & Opportunities



Coordination with small member cities and regional partners is a top priority as we seek to enhance regional mobility.

- January 2024 Service Change is complemented by extension of Regional Partner Agreements for Travis County, Round Rock, Georgetown.
 - Board to consider in September 2023
 - Regional Partner Agreements are driven by Transit Development Plans
- Coordination with smaller member cities to review and update service offerings as part of our ongoing systemwide analysis and evaluation



Step 2: Proposed Service Changes – Jan. 2024



Summary: Make permanent the status of services as they are operating today and add new service where viable.

- Maintain 30-Minute Service on Routes 18, 217, & 335
 - Operating with 30-minute service since September 2021
- Permanently suspend routes 981 and 987 and E-Bus Routes
 - Commuter Routes 981 and 987 suspended since March 2020
 - E-Bus suspended since September 2021
- Adding a new Dove Springs Pickup Zone
 - New zone included in Project Connect program of projects
- Maintain use of suspended resources to increase reliability for customers across
 the system
 CapMetro

Step 2: Develop and Evaluate Proposals

- Major Service Change
- Title VI Service Equity Analysis Completed
 - Express (January 2022)
 - 18, 217, & 335 (November 2022)
 - E-Bus (August 2023)
- Worked with impacted regional partners



Dove Springs Pickup

- January 2024 Planned Launch
- Hours of Operation:
 - Weekdays: 7 a.m. 7 p.m.
 - Saturdays: 10 a.m. 6 p.m.
- 5.4 square mile zone
- Connectivity
 - Route 7, Route 311 and Route 333
 - Future Pleasant Valley MetroRapid



CapMetro

Step 3: Outreach & Public Feedback



Service Equity Analysis Memo **Board Memo** August 1:1 with Advisory Committee Chairs **Customer Satisfactory Committee Operator Notices** Website & on-bus brochure MetroAlerts & social media September At-Stop Signage Virtual Presentation **Access Committee Public Hearing** October **Board Approval**

Changes Implemented January 14, 2024





Thank you!